ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 24, 2004
3:28 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Jim Hol m
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 434
"An Act relating to the practice of naturopathic nedicine; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 434(L&C) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 421
"An Act relating to reconveyances of deeds of trust."

- MOVED CSHB 421(L&C) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 490

"An Act relating to the release of enploynent security records,
to the admissibility of determ nations and decisions regarding
unenpl oynment conpensation benefits, and to contributions,
interest, penalties, and paynents under the Al aska Enploynent
Security Act; providing that property under the Al aska
Enpl oyment Security Act is not subject to the Uniform Uncl ai ned
Property Act; and providing for an effective date.™

- MOVED HB 490 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2004



HOUSE BI LL NO. 330

"An Act shortening the tinme periods after which certain
uncl ai med property is presuned to be abandoned; and providing
for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO 391
"An Act relating to enployers and to victins of crine.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 434

SHORT TI TLE: NATUROPATHI C MEDI CI NE
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

02/ 04/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 04 (H) L&C, JUD

02/ 04/ 04 (H HES REFERRAL ADDED AFTER L&C

02/ 18/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 18/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d <Assigned to Subcnte>
02/ 18/ 04 (H M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 03/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 03/ 04 (H <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 24/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 421
SHORT TITLE: DEED OF TRUST RECONVEYANCE
SPONSOR(S) :  REPRESENTATI VE('S) ANDERSON

02/ 02/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 04 (H L&C, JUD

03/ 19/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 19/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 24/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 490

SHORT TI TLE: EMPLOYMENT SECURI TY ACT AMENDMENTS
SPONSCR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) L&C, JUD

03/ 22/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 22/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 24/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2004



W TNESS REG STER

CLYDE B. JENSEN, Ph.D.

Oregon Health and Science University

Portl and, Oregon

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 434.

DANI EL JAMES YOUNG, N. D.

Eagl e River, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as a naturopathic physician in
support of HB 434.

JASON HARMON, N.D
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 434.

M CHAEL PRI CE, Owner

Mat-Su Title I nsurance Agency, Inc. (Wasilla)

and Fidelity Title (Anchorage);

Menber, Board of Directors

Al aska Land Title Association

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 421 and answered
guesti ons.

JEFF BLAKE

Stewart Title of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 421.

TERRY BRYAN, President

First American Title of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 421.

JOHN BI TNEY, Lobbyi st

for Alaska Land Title Association

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned Anmendnent 1 to HB 421.

TOM NELSON, Director

Enpl oyment Security Division

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on sections of HB 490 and
answer ed questi ons.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2004



TOBY NANCY STEI NBERGER, Assi stant Attorney General

Labor and State Affairs Section

Civil Division (Anchorage)

Depart ment of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information about portions of
HB 490 and answered questi ons.

Bl LL KRAMER, Chief of Unenpl oynent | nsurance

Di vision of Enploynent Security

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about HB 490.

LEONARD M LINTON, JR, District Attorney

3rd Judicial District (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 490,
specifically Section 2.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-32, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:28 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Gatto, Dahlstrom Lynn, Crawford, and QGuttenberg were
present at the call to order. Represent ati ve Rokeberg arrived
as the neeting was in progress. Representative Holm was al so
present.

HB 434- NATURCPATHI C MEDI CI NE

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 434, "An Act relating to the practice of
nat ur opat hi ¢ nedi ci ne; and providing for an effective date."

Number 0136
CLYDE B. JENSEN, Ph.D., Oregon Health and Science University,

noted that he'd traveled to Juneau at his own expense from his
honme in Portland. He testified:

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2004



I"'m particularly interested in rural care and the
i npact that naturopathic mnedicine can have upon rural

heal th care. |'ve been introduced earlier as a Ph.D
in pharmacology and a nedical educator. ' m best
known, t hough, as an admnistrator of medi cal
col | eges. |'ve been responsible for the executive

adm nistration of colleges of allopathic or MD.
[ medi cal doctor] nedicine, osteopathic or D.O [doctor

of ost eopat hy] nmedi ci ne, nat ur opat hi c or N. D.
[ naturopat hic doctor] nedicine, and oriental medicine,
so I'm frequently <called wupon to speak before

policymaking groups on issues pertaining to the
"curative" educational prograns of those several
di fferent professions.

Nunber 0212

DR. JENSEN conti nued:

The three bullet points that | wll share with you are
nat uropat hs versus naturopathic physicians; a second
wi |l be conparative nedical education; a third will be
cont i nui ng medi cal educati on and prescription
authority.

One of the things that | have learned as | have net

with sonme nenbers of the legislature today is that
there is not an awareness of the fact that the term
"naturopath” is an unregulated term It can be owned
by anyone who chooses to use it. A naturopath - or a
person can call hinself a naturopath - in those states
in which naturopathic physicians are not |icensed -
and there are no regulations in those states that
woul d prevent that person from referring to hinself
and hol ding hinself out as a naturopath.

|"ve seen correspondence from the Al aska State Mdica
Associ ation that suggests that there may not be an
awar eness anong nenbers of the MD. profession in the
state that not all people who call t hensel ves
naturopaths are trained in the way that naturopathic
physi cians, of the type who are seated behind ne, are
trai ned.

That, then, takes nme to nmy next bullet, which is

conparative education. Nat uropat hic physicians are
trained in four colleges in the United States. Two

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2004



additional colleges either exist or are developing in
Canada, and in each case it is necessary for themto
receive a bachelor's degree before being admtted into
t hose col | eges. In each case the course of study in
those colleges is four years in duration. The content
of those four years of study would be very simlar,
and in many cases identical, to the training that is
received in MD. and D.O colleges; particularly, the
first two years of that training is identical to that
which is received in MD. and D. O coll eges.

The second two years, as many of you know, is spent
training in clinics and in hospitals and, because the
nature of naturopathic nedicine and the practice of it
is different from that of MD. and D.O nedicine,
nat uropat hi ¢ physicians receive clinical training in
outpatient clinics and largely under the supervision
of naturopathi c physi ci ans.

Number 0433
DR. JENSEN conti nued:

That, then, brings me to the third and final bullet

that | wll share with you, that s, continuing
medi cal education and prescription authority. What
|"ve learned as | have visited with a few nenbers of

the legislature today is that there are those who are
concerned about expanding the scope of practice of
naturopaths in Alaska to include the authority to
wite prescriptions for drugs. And the question is
asked, "Wat kind of training do they have in the use
of pharnmaceutical products in their practices?” It's
an excel |l ent question.

In the two years of training at the beginning of the
four-year nat uropat hic nedi cal educati on program
nat ur opat hi ¢ nmedi cal students are taught pharmnacol ogy;
that is the classroom basic training in the use of
drugs. We teach themin that coursework how drugs act
upon the body, how the body acts upon the drugs. I
can tell you, as both a pharmacol ogi st and as a forner
| eader of those colleges, that that classroom training
is the sanme whether you are studying to be an MD., a
D.O, or an N.D.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2004



In the latter two years of training, MD.s will go to
hospitals and nulti-specialty group practices, where

they will see a |lot of drugs prescribed. Naturopathic
medi cal students will go to outpatient clinics, where
they will see fewer drugs prescribed because, once

again, they are studying under the supervision of
nat ur opat hi ¢ physi ci ans who typically use few drugs.

Nunmber 0544

DR. JENSEN conti nued:
Conti nui ng nmedi cal education is the process that other
states t hat have al | oned prescription-witing

authority to naturopathic physicians to use, in order
to ranp up their ability to wutilize pharnmaceutica

products that they may have had sonewhat Ilimted
experience in using while they were going to nedica
school .

In ny judgnent, those states in which naturopathic
physicians are permtted to prescribe drugs are
sufficiently well trained to utilize the drugs that
t hey prescribe. Il will also tell you that, in ny
experience, naturopathic physicians are very reticent
to prescribe drugs, because they becane naturopathic
physi cians for the purpose of being able to use other
types of therapies - and they sinply do that very,

very well.

My promse was that | would be brief. |"ve touched
upon three bullets, and there are a nunber of other
topics that mght be of interest to you. "Il read a
menu of things that I can discuss if you're
i nt erest ed. Naturopathic nedicine is an energing
profession; | can speak wth you about what that
neans. I'"'m presently witing a book on nedical
(indisc.) ver sus t he medi cal conti nuum ..
Nat uropathic nedicine and rural health, | think, may
have sonme particular inportance to this state because
of the primary-care shortage in areas. Primary care
and naturopathic nedicine is a topic that I'm quite

interested in; those are subjects that |'d be happy to
address as wel | .

Number 0659

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said it is interesting to note the
reference to the fact that if "we don't do anything" and there's
no Jlicensing requirements and no statutes relating to
nat uropat hic nedi cine, that anybody can call hinself or herself
a naturopat h.

DR. JENSEN replied that in Alaska a license is required. He
said that in other states healthcare consuners nmay go to a
person whose business card says naturopath, but they wll not
know the nature of their training. Sone people in the state
medi cal association are not aware of this, he noted.

Number 0720

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said you wused the term "naturopathic
physi ci an" several tines.

DR. JENSEN agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that in statute it says, "A person who
practices naturopathy shall clearly disclose that the person's

training and practices in naturopathy. ... A person who
practices naturopathy nmay not use the word physician in the
person's title." Alaska excludes that possibility, he added.

DR. JENSEN said that varies fromjurisdiction to jurisdiction
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Dr. Jensen how he feels about that.

DR. JENSEN replied, "Those who are trained in four-year colleges
of nedicine, should be, deserve to be, recognized as physicians
and their patients are already referring to themas such.”

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he believes that the people who are
using the word "physicians" would object to that.

DR. JENSEN said you could expect that those from the
conventional health care professions whose responsibilities
i ncludes protecting the public, would want to be certain that
those who call thenselves physicians have been appropriately
trai ned. Dr. Jensen opined that they have been trained
appropri ately.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about the four colleges and whether
Dr. Jensen has an association with any of them

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2004



DR. JENSEN replied that he was at one tinme the president of the
ol dest of the four colleges in Portland, O egon. He said he
served in that capacity for five years and conpleted that
servi ce about two years ago.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if naturopaths frequently sell
products within their own offices and if they had prescription
drug rights, if they would be a di spensing pharnacy.

Nunmber 0829

DR. JENSEN replied that in many cases it 1is necessary for
nat uropaths to both conpound and dispense products from their
own offices because [the products] are not available from other
retail sources. Nat ur opat hi ¢ physici ans have been taught to
blend m xtures of herbs and nutrients in ways that are not
comerci ally avail abl e, he noted.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if they do that now.
DR. JENSEN sai d yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that the prescription drug
rights [in the bill] go beyond that and extend their ability to
conpound prescription drugs in addition to the existing stock
that they have. He asked Dr. Jensen for his opinion on that.

DR. JENSEN said that, personally, he feels that would be
I nappropri ate. He said he does not believe that that is the
intent of this |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said, "But it would allowit."

DR. JENSEN said he has not read the legislation so he cannot
respond to that.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that the legislation does call for
prescription drug rights to be given to individuals who now only
conpound natural ingredients for dispensing or selling from
their own offices.

Number 0946

DR. JENSEN replied that Representative Gatto has asked a very
i nci sive question, one that Dr. Jensen has not thought of. He
said there are tw reasons why MD's and D.Os do not sell
products from their offices. One is that both of those

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2004



prof essi ons have codes of ethics that for purposes of conflict
of interest preclude physicians from selling products that they
prescri be. The second reason is that nost of those physicians
also receive Medicare and Medicaid reinbursements and cannot
sell products for private gain. Naturopathic physicians are not
conpelled by either of those two reasons, he pointed out. He
said that his personal opinion is that dispensing for private
gain fromany practice is a dubious activity. He noted that the
exception to that is when a naturopathic physician nust conpound
products that are not available from other retail sources, they
may have no choice but to dispense. He restated that he does
not believe it is the intent of this legislation to permt the
di spensi ng and sal e of pharnmaceutical products.

Nunmber 1038

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said that the way that the bill is
witten now, it would give unlimted ability to prescribe drugs.
He asked if Dr. Jensen recomrends that [naturopathic physicians]
be able to prescribe addictive and psychotropic drugs.

DR. JENSEN said that he has sonme apprehensions about that. The
scope of practice that is needed by nost prinmary care physicians
is the scope of practice that can probably function quite well
wi t hout schedul ed substances or at | east [ Schedule 11]
substances where there is a high abuse potential, he opined. He
related that he thinks it is a valid concern.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that it does not matter which doctor
he speaks with, they all have the sane opinion, that naturopaths
should not be allowed to dispense prescription nedication. He
said that he has heard the naturopaths say that they have all
t he busi ness they can handle, and they are not going to make any
addi tional income from di spensing drugs. He asked what argunent
could be made in favor of allowng naturopaths to prescribe
prescription drugs.

Nunmber 1138

DR. JENSEN said he may not be the best person to answer the
guestion because he is not a naturopath. He pointed out that a
naturopath is a very conprehensively trained physician and
Al aska is one of the nobst ubiquitous, health personnel shortaged
states in the country because of the large land mass and the
sparse popul ation. Nat uropat hic physicians can play a very
positive and powerful role in nmeeting the needs, particularly of

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2004



rural Al askans, who nmay not have access to heal thcare otherw se,
he opi ned.

DR. JENSEN conti nued:

If they are restricted in their scope of practice, so
that naturopathic physicians are wunable to do the
things that they are really capable of doing, the
people who |[will] suffer are not the physicians.
They' |l continue to nmake a decent |iving. The people
who will suffer are the patients that would like to
have access to adequate and appropriate health care
and whose physicians are limted in performng the
services that they should perform Now, if | were a
nat ur opat hi ¢ physician and | had devoted four or nore
years of ny |life being trained, and |I practiced in a
jurisdiction that didn't value ny training, I'd
probably would be disappointed with the jurisdiction
and | may not practice there |ong. | suspect that
part of the rationale behind this legislation has to
do with appropriate recognition for sone very high
quality training.

REPRESENTATI VE  GATTO gave an exanple of earaches and
antibiotics, which are not given any nore. He asked if
nat uropaths would keep up on that information as well as any
physi ci an.

DR. JENSEN replied that continuing education is the way that any
physician is supposed to keep up. "Speaking to that specific
exanple that you have given, off all of the health care
professionals with which |I have worked, the naturopath woul d be
the least likely to venture into the prescription of drugs for
pur poses that they nmay not be warranted,"” he pointed out.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if it is Dr. Jensen's opinion that
the regul ar physicians are sinply in a "turf protection".

DR. JENSEN said he is very reluctant to say that a state nedica
association or an individual would oppose legislation for
pur poses of economcs, but agreed that there is an economc
impact that can be expected by MD.s, D.Os, and md-|evel
providers in the state, should the scope of naturopathic
physi ci ans be expanded. He pointed out that naturopaths are
taught to do sonething that a lot of conventional providers
don't have a lot of time to do, and that's to touch, talk, and
work with their patients and get to know them There will be

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- March 24, 2004



health care consumers who will choose to receive nore of their
care from naturopathic physicians as the scope of practice
enables them to provide the care that they desire, he added

"These are physicians who can conpete, and the time wll cone
when they will,"” he concl uded.

CHAI R ANDERSON pointed out that there is a fear of devaluation
of the nedical license of a nedical doctor, scientific
uncertainty in physicians' mnds of the verifiability of some of
the practices, the fear of m sdiagnosis, and the question of the
quality of the education. He asked Dr. Jensen if those are the
argunents he has heard in other states.

Number 1483

DR. JENSEN said they are. He related that he left the
University of Oklahoma in 1996 to neet his first naturopathic
physician in Oegon, and until that tinme, that was also his
opi ni on. He related that during the five years he becane
sonewhat of an expert on the subject, he found that his concerns
wer e unwarr ant ed.

CHAI R ANDERSON, reporting on refutes to the three aforenentioned
concerns, said that the education [of naturopaths] surpasses
that of nurse practitioners, mdw ves and physician assistants.
In terns of the Western/Eastern nedicine debate, Chair Anderson
said that issue is not so easily decided. In terns of the
deval uation of the medical |icense, it has been stated that the
naturopath's patients aren't being taken from traditiona
practices, and both have nore than enough patients. He asked if
Dr. Jensen agrees.

DR.  JENSEN agr eed. He added that as for the econom c issue
nat ur opat hi c physi ci ans are not recei vi ng entitl enent
rei mbursenent, so there is no conpetition for that dollar. I n
nost cases, naturopathic physicians are also not receiving third
party reinbursenent. Most people are willing to pay out of
pocket for those services.

Nunmber 1603

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN pointed out that there is probably not
scientific certainty for anything. He asked how the typical
person chooses fromthe variety of nedical treatnents avail able.
He wondered how a person knows where to go for their nedical
pr obl em He said he wll probably vote no reconmendati on on
this bill.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- March 24, 2004



DR. JENSEN replied that the average person probably does not
have enough information to know where to go today. The average
person is probably going to gather information from other health
care professionals, and as the professionals becone nore and
nore know edgeable, they will be able to nmake referrals to one
anot her nore frequently and nore confidently, he rel ated.

DR. JENSEN expl ai ned:

In the world of health care, we used to refer to
conventional and alternative nedicine and then we
di scovered that there were things about alternative
medicine that were nore conpatible with conventional
medi ci ne than we thought, and so we started referring
to conventional nedicine and alternative medicine as
conplimentary nedicine because they could work
t oget her. Today, there's a new buzzword wthin the
field and it's called integrative nedicine. That' s
where MD.s and D.Os and N.D.s and D.C.s and other
types of health care professionals can actually work
as a team | predict that the day will cone, and it
will cone only as a consequence of |legislation that
permts each of the groups to practice the things that
t hey have been taught to practice, but | predict that

the day wll conme when there wll be health care
managers in individual offices or in groups of offices
that will help patients navigate through this very
conpl ex assortnment of health care options. And, the
day will come when MD.s will be referring to ND.s

and NND.s to DDC.s - we're sinply not there yet. But,
you've raised a very difficult question for health
care consuners in the year 2004. How are they going
to know? They never wll know, though, if we don't
allow health care professionals to practice that scope
of practice that they' ve been trained to deliver.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN opined that it is a very dangerous thing for
the consunmer because he or she is at the nercy of health care
provi ders.

DR. JENSEN related that there is a protective nechanism in all
jurisdictions for the consuner. Among those protective
mechani snms are the board of examiners or the |icensing board.
Whenever a consuner is confronted by a situation that he or she
t hi nks may be dubious, he or she can report that to the board,
which is required by lawto reviewit.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- March 24, 2004



Number 1801

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked, "Are we |icensing here above
the education level, or does this match the authority that we're
gi vi ng nat ur opat hs?"

DR. JENSEN replied that the current license in Al aska is bel ow
the |evel of education of a naturopath. The proposed
| egi slation would cone closer to, but not exceed the level to
whi ch they are trained, he opined. He noted that the nmention of
controlled substances wearlier is one exanple of what he
considers the high end of a primary care practice. That is
where there is sone risk to which patients would be exposed, he
sai d.

CHAIR ANDERSON wondered if this legislation is setting a
precedent and is beyond the scope of what naturopaths are
allowed to do in other states.

DR. JENSEN said, "No, there are other states in which the scope
and practice already exceeds that which is recormmended by this
| egi sl ature.”

Nunmber 1888

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked if his appropriate title 1is
doct or.

CHAI R ANDERSON sai d, "Ph.D."

DR. JENSEN replied that his daughter says he is the kind of
doct or who never hel ps anyone.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM thanked Dr. Jensen for comng and
testifying at his own expense. She asked for clarification

about the four-year degree and wondered if English and nath are
part of the course requirenents.

DR. JENSEN replied that the English and math classes are taken
before a person enters the four-year naturopathic program

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM said, "So, | have a four-year degree
al ready, and this is a second four-year degree on top of it."

DR. JENSEN sai d yes, and thanks for asking that question.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- March 24, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked for Dr. Jensen's opinion about a
nat uropathi ¢ physician having to team up with a traditional
physician in the sanme office in order to practice.

DR. JENSEN said the teaming up part is happening nore and nore
often for the convenience of the patient, but for supervision
purposes there nmay be a precedent set in California where their
statute does call for sone association between naturopathic
physi ci ans and conventional physicians.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked if that devaluates the naturopathic license
and is very expensive because of the need to relocate to a
doctor's office.

DR. JENSEN said if he were a naturopathic physician he woul d
avoid that type of relationship for the reasons Chair Anderson
descri bed.

Number 2037

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked if the state of California offers
full prescription rights to their naturopathic physicians.

DR. JENSEN said he does not believe so. He noted that it was a
bill recently passed in the last |egislative session and has not
yet been inpl enment ed.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM wondered if Dr. Jensen would consider
it to be a friendly anendnent to the bill to change it to allow
just Schedule | drugs, a section that deals with the conpoundi ng
of drugs, and whether they could or could not be sold out of the
of fice.

DR. JENSEN replied that he wunderstands the intent of the
question but that he has to change the term nology because a

Schedule |1 substance is the nobst dangerous of all the drugs.
The friendly amendnent would allow prescription authority up to
a certain level of schedul ed substances such as Schedule 11, he

suggested. He said he would encourage the discussion of that.

CHAIR ANDERSON noted the arrival of Representative Holm and
brought himup to date, explaining that Representative Dahl strom
is looking into limtation on prescriptions and on dispensing
froma [naturopath's] office of things |ike antibiotics.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM clarified that she is not thinking of
anti biotics, but of compounds such as acne nedicine.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- March 24, 2004



Number 2147

CHAI R ANDERSON cl osed public testinony. He asked Representative
Gatto to report on the subcommittee's findings.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he did not submt a letter signed by
all three nmenbers of the subcommttee, partly because he could
not decide on the issue. Wth regard to question nunber one

which asked for a conpromse wth the Alaska Medica

Associ ation, there was none to be had, he reported. Wth regard
to question two, discussion of Section 6, regarding mnor
surgery, nost of the [subcommittee] agreed that they did not
know what mnor surgery is. In California mnor surgery is to
repair a | acerati on wi t hout sut ures, he report ed.
Representati ve Dahl strom brought up the fact that |aser surgery
does not use sutures, he said. There was discussion of whether
floating a catheter through a tiny opening is surgery or a
procedure, and so the group decided they were not clear on the
definition of mnor surgery. Wth regard to question three, the
di scussion of Section 15, the repeal of AS 08.45.040, which
refers to the disclosure that naturopaths are required to
di sclose to each patient that their training is in naturopathy,
and whether or not they have nal practice insurance, he said he
is not sure that Section 15 is even in the bill

Number 2251

CHAIR ANDERSON reported that Section 15, page 7, line 19,
repeal s AS 08. 45. 040, which Representative Gatto as chair of the
subcomm ttee referred to, states:

Di scl osures required by per son who practices
nat ur opat hy. Subsection (a) C shal | clearly
di sclose that the person's training and practices in
naturopathy (1) to each patient and (2) on all
material used in the practice of naturopathy and nade
available to patients or to the public. (b) A person
who practices naturopathy w thout being covered by
mal practice insurance shall disclose to each patient
that the person does not have the insurance.

CHAI R ANDERSON said he is unclear why that should be repeal ed.
He asked Representative Hol mwhy that is.

REPRESENTATIVE HOLM said he is wunsure why that section is
repeal ed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- March 24, 2004



CHAI R ANDERSON restated the unresolved questions that are stil
before the conmttee. ©One is the reconciliation with the Al aska
Medi cal Association, which does not support the bill. The
paranmeters dealing with prescriptions still need to be resol ved,
the definition of mnor surgery still needs to be defined, and
there is a repeal of a disclosure section to figure out, he
rel at ed. The issue about prescribing of drugs would also need
to be resol ved, he added.

Number 2354

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM requested that Representative Gatto, as
chair of the subcommittee, discuss those issues with the maker
of the bill before the commttee votes on the bill

TAPE 04-32, SIDE B
Nunmber 2365

CHAI R ANDERSON replied that he is commtted to noving the bill
out w thout objection from the commttee. He said he agrees
with the general intent of the bill

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested that the nenbers of the
commttee offer amendnents if they wi sh to.

Number 2345

DANIEL JAMES YOUNG N D., a naturopathic physician and a
| i censed acupuncturist, addressing the repealing of [Section
15], reported that 17 years ago there was not a license for
nat uropat hic physicians in Al aska. He said this section is
antiquated and refers to the practice of naturopathy, which Dr.
Jensen explained is different from the ©practice of a
nat ur opat hi ¢ physi ci an. He said that patients know clearly that
they are dealing with a naturopathic physician. It is now
common practice for naturopathic physicians to carry mal practice
insurance, and it didn't used to be avail abl e, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if nal practice is required.

DR. YOUNG replied that he is not sure if it is required, but
everyone has it.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said, "The ones you know of." He suggested
keeping the disclosure in the bill

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- March 24, 2004



DR YOUNG said it is his understanding that naturopathic
physi ci ans have nal practice i nsurance and the patients know it.

Nunber 2236

CHAI R ANDERSON suggested that if a naturopathic physician is
going to perform mnor surgery and prescribe nedication, the
bill should mandate nal practice insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said there is no mandated insurance
requirenent in any of the |icensing procedures in the state. He
asked if [Section 15] is not repealed would there be parity or
would M D.s then have to nake the sane discl osure.

Nunber 2184

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM of f ered Conceptual Amendnent 1, on page
2, line 27, with the intent of adding the definition of mnor
surgery.

CHAI R ANDERSON obj ect ed. He stated that the amendnent is too
br oad.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that there already is a
definition of mnor surgery in the bill on page 6, line 19. He
said he thinks it adequately describes the issue.

CHAIR ANDERSON clarified that page 6, lines 20-30, describe
m nor surgery.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM said to disregard that, and then she
prepared to offer Conceptual Anendnent 1 dealing wth the
prescriptive rights, but said she did not know which section to
add it to.

Number 2116

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested page 5, line 16. He asked if
Representative Dahlstrom is thinking about adding a |evel [of
drug] .

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM sai d correct.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked the witness for his opinion on
what | evels woul d be appropriate.

Number 2094

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- March 24, 2004



DR. YOUNG replied that his understanding is that the intent in
this area was to allow naturopathic physicians to be able to
access the prescription-type nedications that they need to
practice naturopathic nedicine safely. [This section] was based
on state laws from other states that |icense naturopathic
physi ci ans. Schedule 11 drugs allow for wuse of narcotic
substances for the relief of pain, he explained. Schedul es 111
and |V [drugs] |essen the extent of potential for psychol ogica
or physiol ogi c dependence, he said. "We haven't outlined it
here because we thought that that would be in the regulations
and that it also inplies that not all naturopathic physicians
were going to apply for a DEA [Drug Enforcenent Adm nistration]
license, it was only those that had specific training and a
speci alization, as such, and would cover additional pharnacal
t herapeutics ...."

Nunber 2017
CHAIR ANDERSON asked Representative Dahlstrom to consider

wi t hhol di ng Conceptual Anmendnent 1 because of the fact that
there are two nore conmmttees of referral and [the amendnent]

could not be finished today. He suggested passing the bill on
to House Health, Education, and Social Services Standing
Commttee to address all of this issues. He al so opined that

scheduling HB 434 wth House Judiciary Standing Committee is
unnecessary and coul d be wai ved.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he does not feel confortable

letting the bill nove on wthout addressing the concerns. He
suggesting limting the amount of the ability to prescribe drugs
to level 11l and IV. He said he does not want psychotropic and

anti-psychotic drugs to be included.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked how long the bill has been held for the
subconmittee. It has been thirty days and the subcommttee cane
back w th nothing, he opined. He said now he is being told by
the whole subcommttee that there is no agreenment on any of
t hese concerns and he is being asked to hold the bill

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d he would |like to nove an anendnent.
REPRESENTATI VE  DAHLSTROM noted that she would be nore
confortable with the amendnent about the prescriptive |[evel

being handled in this commttee.

Nunmber 1865

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- March 24, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Anendment 1, to delete
[ paragraph 4] on page 5, lines 16 and 17.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG explained that this is a point of
contention and the bill has two nore comrmittees to go to.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD o0bj ect ed. He said that deleting
[ paragraph 4] is the correct thing to do but it does not go far
enough.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if Schedule 111 and IV drugs are
control |l ed substances.

Nunber 1733

DR, YOUNG suggested dropping it down to Schedule Il drugs. The
danger ous psychotropic drugs are in Schedule |, he said.
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if Schedule | - [V drugs are DEA

controll ed substances.

DR. YOUNG replied yes. The schedules are set up by the Drug
Enf or cenent Agency. Schedule | are drugs that are wusually
research only and very dangerous, he expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG r epeat ed hi s questi on.

DR. YOUNG sai d yes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that Anendnent 1 deletes all
control | ed substances.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked if abortion is m nor surgery.
DR. YOUNG sai d no.
Number 1621

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if Prozac and Zol oft are
control | ed substances.

JASON HARMON, N.D., explained that Schedule 1[Il drugs are
medi ci nes that have a high potential for abuse. An exanple of a
Schedule 11l drug 1is cough syrup and other codeine-based
medi ci nes. Valium is an exanple of a Schedule IV drug, he
added.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- March 24, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he would include psychotropic and
psychot herapeutic drugs as a friendly amendnent to Concept ual
Amendnent 1.

Nunber 1491
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what schedul e RU486 woul d be under.

DR. HARMON said he does not know. He asked for clarification of
the amendnment, and whether the DEA license for naturopathic
physi ci ans woul d be del et ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that is correct and there would be
two other conmttees to put it back in.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked if there were any further objections to
Conceptual Amendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gatto, Dahlstrom
Lynn, Rokeberg, OCrawford, and Anderson voted in favor of
Conceptual Anmendnent 1. Representative Quttenberg voted agai nst
it. Therefore, Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopted by a vote of
6- 1.

Nunmber 1396

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM said that everyone in the room could
see what just happened in the last ten mnutes. She rel ated:

The subconmittee net and discussed this and had
neeting after neeting after neeting, talked wth
professionals from every aspect. You can see what
happened here in the last ten mnutes. W had
paperwork that was ready to be presented; we got
information to change those facts. | personally have
been working on this since June, and so | don't take
real kindly to soneone telling nme that they're
enbarrassed by what ny actions were in the
subconmttee and | state that for you to consider. I
mean | think that there certainly have been things
that have happened in this legislature that naybe
peopl e could and should be enbarrassed about. I am
not enbarrassed by what our subcommttee did and the
intent that we had from the very first tine we net

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- March 24, 2004



until talking just right before we got here have been
the concerns that are still on all of our mnds. And,
| feel it necessary to put that on the record.

CHAI R ANDERSON replied that his statenent about enbarrassnent
was sinply that "a lot of folks cane in and | feel that we
didn't conclude or even cone to any consensus.” He noted that
his comments were not directed at Representative Dahlstrom or
toward any individual person.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that debate and voting is necessary
based on the perceived nerits and denerits of the bill, whether
anyone flewin to testify or not.

Nunber 1279

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said a person does not have to be present
to make sure that the bill passes out. He noted that the
subconmittee did have agreenents and the agreenents were that
prescription drug privileges were not in the best interest. He
said Representative Dahlstrom is correct in that the commttee
did spent a lot of time on this bill. He said that there was

concern because it appears that the naturopathic physicians
already seemto be taking privileges that are addressed in this
bill.

DR. HARMON said he does not represent hinself as a doctor of
nat ur opat hi ¢ nedi ci ne even though it states that on his card.

CHAI R ANDERSON said that the next subconmttee should cone up
with sonme |level of recommendation in order to be nore concise.
He said he does appreciate the subcomnmttee' s work.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that he did not have a chance to
address question nunber four, but the conmttee eventually got
toit.

Number 1183

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report HB 434 out of commttee,
as anended, with individual recommendati ons and the acconpanyi ng
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 434(L&C) was
reported fromthe House Labor and Conmerce Standi ng Committee.

HB 421- DEED OF TRUST RECONVEYANCE

Number 1123

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- March 24, 2004



CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 421, "An Act relating to reconveyances of
deeds of trust."”

CHAI R ANDERSON, sponsor, explained that HB 421 was introduced at
the request of the Alaska Land Title Association (ALTA). The
intent is to provide a process in state law whereby a
reconveyance of deeds of trust can be recorded wthin a
reasonabl e timefrane. Noting the presence of people from the
title insurance industry to answer technical questions, he said
the bill's |anguage may appear conplex, but the concept and
purpose are intended to be sinple.

CHAIR ANDERSON offered details, saying in a honme purchase
through a standard nortgage there is a deed of trust. Once the
honeowner pays off the nortgage, the nortgage-servicing conmpany
isn't required by law to record the reconveyance of the nortgage
with the State Recorder's Ofice, wunder the Departnent of
Natural Resources (DNR), wthin any tinmeframe; it could take
years to get the reconveyance recorded. These nortgage-
servicing conpanies often are out of state, a practice likely to
continue, and often find it difficult to take care of the
reconveyances with the recorder's office in Al aska. Probl ens
arise when the honmes or properties are resold and additional
time and conplications inpede the new sale.

CHAIR ANDERSON reported that since introduction of this
| egi sl ati on, Representative Berkowtz and Senator Stedman have

identified this issue in recent property purchases. Poi nti ng
out that deeds of trust covered under HB 421 are only those held
by a title insurance conpany, he said the heart of the bill is
on page 1, lines 9-10, relating to the title insurance conpany's
recei pt of satisfactory evidence of the paynment in full before
beginning the reconveyance. Much of the bill focuses on

ensuring a full and proper notification process, and standards
are established for the notification forns in order to help
ensure quality control. He noted that these sections were taken
fromldaho' s law on this matter

Number 1000

MCHAEL PRICE, Owner, Mt-Su Title Insurance Agency, Inc.
(Wasilla), and Fidelity Title (Anchorage); Menber, Board of
Directors, Alaska Land Title Association, offered to be the main
person to answer technical questions. Stating support for
HB 421, he said 20 years ago perhaps 99 percent of deeds of

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- March 24, 2004



trust in Alaska were done by in-state |enders; when nortgages
were paid off, there was no significant problem with tinely
recording of releases. |Increasingly, however, those are done by
out-of -state conpanies that may even sell the nortgages to other
conpani es. Whereas few deeds of trust experienced reconveyance
probl ens previously, M. Price said he has been told several
t housands now are known to have been satisfied and yet the
reconveyance has becone seem ngly inpossible. He agreed this
situation isn't unique to Al aska.

MR. PRI CE explained that with this bill, upon satisfactory proof
of evidence of paynent - which conpanies like his wll have
because they'll have a negotiated check or wre transfer of
funds - there will be a vehicle and nmethod to provide the
rel ease. This wll benefit the stream of comerce and al
Al askans, he predicted. He requested favorable consideration of
t hi s much- needed bil |

Number 0801

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN disclosed that he is a licensed associate
real estate broker with a nmjor conpany that gets peripherally
i nvol ved with reconveyances.

CHAIR ANDERSON told nenbers he'd been advised that nenbers
didn't need to disclose conflicts unless they were on the House
fl oor voting.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that's not necessarily true. He
noted there is an advisory opinion before the Select Committee
on Legislative Ethics [which he's a nenber of] on that very
questi on.

CHAI R ANDERSON thanked Representative Lynn for the disclosure
and requested that he vote on the bill if there is a vote.

Nunmber 0766

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Price why it was decided to
put the form itself in statute and whether there is a way to
avoi d that.

MR. PRICE said he presunes and believes the form was generated
as a result of having a specific anpbunt of information to be
provided and to nake sure the notification is uniform no matter
where in the state it occurs. He surm sed that nenbers of the
industry won't find it objectionable because they deal wth

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- March 24, 2004



statutory forns such as the general power of attorney on a
regul ar basi s.

Number 0684

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nentioned, "Receipt of satisfactory
paynment” and asked whether the canceled check, if that was all
t he conpany had, would be adequate for the record.

MR. PRICE answered affirmatively, saying 9 times out of 10 it
will be a conbination of the payoff information received from
the outside |ender and evidence that a check or wre transfer
was sent to [that |ender]. He added, "On sonme occasions, we
will accept the evidence of the payoff amount ... and evidence
that, let's say, a local bank did the closing ... as a result of
a construction loan and that they sent the noney." Thus he said
he could foresee taking the representation of a reputable
Al askan business, principally a bank, that the paynent was nade.
"But nost of the time, | would say, it's going to be ourselves
maki ng the paynent," he concl uded.

Number 0615

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how it works, expressed concern
about what the current law is regarding this issue, and asked
whet her the l|ender has to formally acknow edge receipt of the
payoff of the note in order for [the title insurance agency] to
i ssue the reconveyance.

MR. PRI CE replied:

W receive a ... request for reconveyance executed by
the lender, saying that it was ... paid off in full
and to release the deed of trust or nortgage.
However, there is no state statute, at |east that | am
aware of, that requires the lender to do that. Now,
| ocal |enders have always done it because ... it
serves our stream of comerce.

Were we're having problens ... are those outside
| enders ... who know ... they have refinanced

200,000 loans in the |last year, and naybe in the next
two or three years they' Il get around to doing the
request for reconveyance, but they're certainly in no
hurry to add to their staff to do so. So there's
currently no law that |I'm aware of ... that requires

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- March 24, 2004



them to provide us evidence that the [oan has been
paid ... and to release it.

Nunmber 0486

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that M. Price is a |ong-
practicing attorney in this area, and suggested if he doesn't
know about a law, there isn't one. He requested confirmation
that there's no statutory mandate for notification or delivery
of the request for reconveyance.

MR PRI CE answer ed:

Believe it or not, ... we do not. It is a matter of
contract. And, of course, those conpanies that w sh
to do business in Alaska are nore inclined to do so.
However, as | indicated earlier and as you are aware,
a lot of these deeds of trust go through three or four
different assignnments that we have to chase down to
get the payoff, and those people are not licensed to
do business in the state - they're not required to be,
by the way - and ... they really have very little, if
any, nexus to the state. ... Therefore, our ability to
force themto do what is right is somewhat [imted.

This puts the burden on the title industry. But, on
the other hand, it is our burden to clear title and
therefore it is ... the nost responsible group to sort
of require the release of these deeds of trust upon.

And we are, by the way, ... an industry that is
regul ated heavily by ... the Division of Insurance.
... W are required to have fiduciary bonds. ... W
are used to dealing with people's nonies, and ... |
think, are a trustworthy group to release deeds of
trust when they've been paid.

Number 0300

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked whether this bill would change the
process of sending the owner a deed of trust to record after a
property was paid off. He cited an exanple of his own renta
properties [in Louisiana].

MR. PRI CE said no. What happens to perhaps 95 percent of all
deeds of trust won't change. Wen one is paid off, the request
for reconveyance and the note are sent to the title conpany,
whi ch releases and reconveys it alnost inmediately. Once the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- March 24, 2004



nortgage is paid off, the collection agent would send it
automatically to the title conpany, or would send it to the
owner with advice to send it to the title conpany. He said this
bill would only affect the approximately 4 to 5 percent of deeds
of trust that "we cannot get the lending institution to rel ease,
t hough we know t hey have received their paynent."

Number 0205

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he didn't recall ever sending a
deed to a title conpany.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG explained that the title conpany hol ds

the deed until it's satisfied; the request for reconveyance is
the request "to send you the deed when you paid it off." He
said that's it in a nutshell: these outside |enders aren't

sending the wverification or the request for reconveyance to
allow the title conpany, which holds the deed, to provide it to
[the owner].

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD noted that Louisiana doesn't have title
conpani es.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said Loui siana has French codified |aw
and contract real estate. However, Alaska is a "deed of trust
state" where a trustee holds the deed until it is paid off.

MR PRICE affirnmed the | ast statenent and said in nost instances

the local title conpany is nanmed the trustee. In order to
rel ease the nortgage, [the title conpany] executes a docunent
called a "deed of reconveyance." He remarked, "It's sonewhat

fictional in the sense that we're not deeding back the property,
we're sinply rel easing the nortgage.”

Number 0051

JEFF BLAKE, Stewart Title of Al aska, noted that he has been in
the title insurance business since 1960 and in Alaska since
1975. Agreeing this problem has only appeared in the |[ast
decade because of dealing wth outside Ilenders, M. Blake
t hanked Chair Anderson for sponsoring the bill and requested the
commttee's support. He said this speaks to the consunmer who
doesn't quite understand "how conme we spent their noney and
docunents still show there's an encunbrance on their property
and, at this point, we can't effectively get that cleared for
him" He said he'd like to be able to resolve this problem

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- March 24, 2004



TAPE 04-33, SIDE A
Number 0006

TERRY BRYAN, President, First Anerican Title of Al aska, noted
that his conpany operates in 10 Al askan communities and does
business in 20 recording districts. Concurring with M. Price's
testinmony, he said liability for ensuring the transaction noves
forward with this new reconveyance process "stays with a heavily
regul ated industry.” Agreeing wth M. Blake that this is
consuner-oriented, M. Bryan described having to sit across the
table from a single nother or an elderly couple and apol ogi ze
that the house cannot be refinanced or sold because the title is
clouded, since on the last transaction the I|ender hadn't
provi ded what was needed, despite proof that the obligation had
been satisfied. Mentioning one Anchorage conpany wth 1,485
transactions [pending] from 1993 from outside |lenders, he
surm sed that at |east 6,000 consuners now have this problem of
transactions where |enders haven't given the instructions to
reconvey after [the terns] have been satisfied.

Number 0160

CHAIR ANDERSON called attention to Anendnent 1, |abeled 23-
LS1315\D. 1, Banni ster, 3/18/ 04, which read:

Page 4, line 12:
Delete "title insurer's"
Insert "title insurance conpany's"

Page 4, line 27, following "section,":
| nsert

"(1)"

Page 4, line 28, followi ng "under the trust deed":
| nsert ";
(2) "title insurance conpany” neans a title
i nsurance conpany or a title insurance Ilimted
producer; in this paragraph, "title insurance conpany”
and "title insurance |imted producer” have the
meani ngs given in AS 21. 66. 480"

CHAI R ANDERSON asked M. Bitney to explain it.
Number 0178

JOHN BITNEY, Lobbyist for Alaska Land Title Association
expl ained that Amendnent 1 was put forth at the association's

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- March 24, 2004



request to clarify those locations within the bill where it says
"title insurance conpany". He said in other states, insurance
industries are brokers, agents, and carriers. However, Al aska
doesn't have carriers; all conpanies here have an underwiter or
a carrier outside the state. Thus this anendnent clarifies that
this |l aw applies to Al askan conpani es.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked whether it is title insurance conpani es and
only changes lines 12, 27, and 28 [of page 4] to be uniformin
the bill.

MR. BI TNEY affirnmed that.
CHAI R ANDERSON cl osed public testinony.
Nunber 0297

CHAIR ANDERSON [noved to adopt] Anmendnent 1 [text provided
previously]. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN remarked that he was shocked to hear there
were 6,000 of these [pending cases related to this bill].

Number 0315

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report HB 421, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG conmment ed that as soneone who isn't in
the business but has bought and sold real estate, he'd always
had the inpression that one reason for using a title insurance

conpany i's to ensure t hat transactions are handl ed
"instantaneously." He said it amazes himto di scover one aspect
of the industry hasn't been playing at the sane table, and if
this helps, he'll certainly support.

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that Representative Quttenberg had
renoved his objection.

Number 0415

CHAI R ANDERSON asked whether there was any further objection.
There being no objection, CSHB 421(L&C) was reported from the
House Labor and Commerce Standi ng Commttee.

HB 490- EMPLOYMENT SECURI TY ACT AMENDMENTS

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- March 24, 2004



CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 490, "An Act relating to the release of

enpl oynent security records, to t he adm ssibility of
determ nati ons and deci sions regardi ng unenpl oynment conpensati on
benefits, and to contributions, i nterest, penal ti es, and

paynents under the Alaska Enploynment Security Act; providing
that property under the Al aska Enploynment Security Act is not
subject to the Uniform Unclainmed Property Act; and providing for
an effective date.™

Nunmber 0466

TOM NELSON, Director, Enploynment Security Division, Departnent
of Labor & Wbrkforce Developnent, noted that he'd speak
primarily to Sections 4-7, 9, and 11-13. He characterized the
proposed changes as largely "housekeeping"” and clarification of
existing statute. The changes align Al aska's statutory |anguage
with federal law, and will bring Al aska into conpliance with the
unenpl oynent insurance overpaynent arrangenent that Alaska has
W th other states.

MR, NELSON said Section 4 authorizes the departnent to adopt
regul ations providing for the distribution of unclained excess
contributions, while Sections 5 6, and 9 clarify statute by
adding the terns "manager"” and "limted liability conpany" to
exi sting definitions. Section 7 brings Alaska into conformty
with the interstate reciprocal overpaynent-recovery arrangenent
that would allow Alaska to collect unenploynent insurance
over paynments on behalf of other states for reasons other than
fraud. He explained that other states participating in this
agreenent already provide this service to Al aska.

MR.  NELSON further explained that Section 11 aligns state
statute wth federal law by clarifying which health care
professionals are excluded from the definition of enploynent.
Section 12 clarifies |anguage that provides exclusion from the
definition of wages, of paynents or benefits provided by an
enpl oyer, for the purposes of educational assistance to its
enpl oyees. He noted that federal |aw already excludes this type
of educati onal assistance from the definition of wages.
Section 13 renoves reference to provisions of the Departnent of
Revenue |aw regarding disposal of abandoned property. Thi s
woul d allow for unclainmed excess contributions to be deposited
back into the unenploynent insurance (U) trust fund, as is the
case with federal |aw.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- March 24, 2004



Number 0629

MR. NELSON, in response to Representative QGuttenberg, explained
that excess contributions relate to overpaynents for fraud and
nonfraud purposes such as mstakes on behalf of a clainmant or

m st akes that the departnent m ght nmake. An exanple would be
the departnment's mstakenly witing a check in excess of a
claimant's eligibility. In further response, he said "excess

contributions" refers to the benefit-paynent portion of the U
system he gave the exanple of an enpl oyer who overpays into the
U system and said this would result in the departnent's
providing a refund or credit to that enployer.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he dislikes this type of bill and
expl ai ned, "You never know if there's a ringer in here."

Number 0743

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG referred to Section 7, page 3, and
asked whether there is a national standard for entitlenent.

MR. NELSON explained that the interstate reciprocal overpaynent
arrangenent with other states was witten in 1955, was anended
in 1977, and isn't currently in alignment with that federal
agreenent . He added, "Currently we only are providing the
fraudulent pieces with the other states. O her states do
provide recovery of those paynments back to Alaska, but we
currently, because of our statute definition, do not provide the
other to the other states.”

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether Alaska was facing any
sanctions for not being in alignnent.

MR. NELSON said not currently, but the departnent wants to
enphasi ze recovery of overpaynents through its regulatory
processes with the federal government. The annual audit of the
federal program had nentioned that the departnent needs to
revi ew and update the applicable statute.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked who pays into the U fund and
how often the excess in the fund is exanmined to recalibrate the
contri buti ons.

MR. NELSON explained that the enployer contributes 80 percent,
and 20 percent is contributed by enployees. The fund 1is
exam ned annually, and there is a trust fund solvency factor
examned vyearly that is based on several vyears' worth of

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- March 24, 2004



contributions and paynents into and out of the trust fund. | f
paynents into the fund exceed outgoing paynents, a reduction in
taxes could result, and visa versa.

Nunmber 0948

TOBY NANCY STEI NBERGER, Assistant Attorney General, Labor and
State Affairs Section, Cvil Division (Anchorage), Departnent of
Law, noted that she'd address Sections 1-3, which deal wth
allowing the rel ease of enploynent security records for crimna
investigation and prosecution purposes, and Section 8, which
deals with the binding effects of unenploynent conpensation
deci sions. She told nenbers:

Sections 1 through 3 of the bill will help crimnal
prosecutors - state, federal and nunicipal prosecutors
- to investigate and prosecute crimnal cases because

it will help them |ocate suspects, w tnesses, victins,
and persons who are on parole or probation. As way of
backgr ound, enpl oyers provide payroll i nformation

quarterly to the Unenploynent Security D vision, along
with their enploynent security taxes.

The division also provides unenploynent benefits to
qual i fying persons, and the division is substantially

federally funded. ... The United States Departnent of
Labor has required that enploynent security records
are confidential, but has allowed for a nunber of

exceptions within Al aska Statute 23.20.110. But none
of these exceptions allows for the release of
information for <crimnal prosecution other than in
prosecuting cases agai nst clai mants who have
fraudul ently obt ai ned unenpl oynent conpensati on
benefits.

The Crimnal Division in the US. Attorney's Ofice
has frequently wanted enploynment security records to
find suspects, wi tnesses, and even victins, since this
information s updated so frequently. However
because the statute does not allow for an exception
for these crimnal purposes, the division has denied
t he request.

W have had the U S. Departnment of Labor review this
amendnent, and ... [it] has approved it. And, in
fact, the U S. Departnent of Labor has permtted other
states to allow the release of enploynent security

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -32- March 24, 2004



information for - crim nal i nvestigations and
prosecutions, and these states include Wshington,
| owa, Arkansas, Ceorgia, U ah, and Ckl ahona.

Section 8 would anend Alaska Statute 23.20.497
Currently, that statute provides that unenpl oynent
conpensation decisions are not adm ssible in a
subsequent action or proceeding in another forum
This is because in unenploynent cases, enployers,
because they have little incentive to participate

in an unenploynment case where sonmeone's seeking
unenpl oynent benefits, ... because enployers have
little financial interest, because they don't pay
unless they are self-insured, they don't have a
financial interest in the outcone.

This anmendnment would clarify that ... subsequent
action would also include an arbitration proceeding.
So it wouldn't just be court proceedings or other
adm ni strative proceedings, but also would include
arbitration proceedi ngs.

Nunber 1152

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Ms. Steinberger to coment on
Section 4.

MS5. STEINBERGER deferred to Tom Nelson, but offered her
understanding that this section refers to excess contributions
pai d by enployers when the departnent hasn't been able to | ocate
t hose persons.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked Ms. Steinberger if she is saying
there is an arbitration process built into the bill

MS. STEI NBERGER replied no. She clarified that a person who
termnates and files for unenploynent conpensation is entitled
to benefits inmmediately if the termnation was for good cause.
If it was without good cause or because of m sconduct connected
with the job, benefits are delayed for six weeks.

IVB. STEI NBERGER provided the exanple that sonetinmes an
individual will claimat the enploynent security hearing that he
or she was term nated due to discrimnation, while the enployer
isn't able to attend the hearing but maintains the term nation
was because of poor work habits. She said it is possible that
the enployee would prevail at the hearing and later bring a

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 33- March 24, 2004



|l awsuit against the enployer; in this case, the evidence
submtted at the initial proceeding and the decision wouldn't be
adm ssible in a court proceeding or a Human Rights Conmmi ssion
proceedi ng. She pointed out that this bill would add that it is
al so not adm ssible in an arbitration proceeding.

Nunber 1297

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG requested clarification on Section 4;
particularly the part indicating that the bill deletes the
sentence that says the regulations nust be substantially simlar
to the provisions of the statute. He renarked:

That just scares ... nme. ... Then | |ooked over at the
sectional analysis, and then it told nme ... what your
notives were here. That's why | wanted to verify
this. Under the sectional it says that the ESD
[ Enpl oynent Security Division] may have  excess
contributions from enployers. Currently, they are
di sposed of under the Uniform Unclainmed Property Act.

So it would appear that ... the intent of this
section is to allow the departnent to wite new
regulations that wll allow you to dispose of these

uncl ai mred funds, as your new regulations see fit,
wi thout having to go through the Uniform Unclainmed
Property Act. Wuld that be a correct assertion?

Number 1403

BILL KRAMER, Chief of Unenploynent |Insurance, Division of
Enpl oynent Security, Depar t ment of Labor & Workforce
Devel opnent, responded:

Section 4 authorized the departnent to adopt
regul ati ons provi di ng for t he di stribution of
uncl ai med, excess contributions, taxes. The change
removes reference to the provisions of the Departnent
of Revenue |aw regarding disposal of  abandoned
property. C Unenpl oynment i nsurance federal | aw
requires that unclaimed excess contributions be
deposited back into the federally admnistered U

trust fund, and that's the reason that this section is
her e.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the intent of the |egislature
had to be subverted because of federal |aw and the supremacy

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 34- March 24, 2004



clause in the U S. Constitution. He asked if the departnent had
tried to refund excess paynents to enpl oyers.

VR. KRAMER affirnmed that t he departnent refunds excess
contributions directly to the enployer and said that wasn't
being challenged in Section 4. He said under the Departnent of
Revenue's | aws, unclainmed or abandoned property is to be swept
back into the general fund. The federal unenploynent insurance
tax Act stipulates that these dollars be returned to the trust
fund.

Nunmber 1506

LEONARD M LINTON, Jr., District Attorney, 3rd Judicial D strict
(Anchorage), Departnent of Law, testified regarding Section 2.
He said this provision allows his departnent to stay in contact
with victins of crime and w tnesses through sonetines-Iengthy
court proceedings. When people relocate, the departnent often
doesn't have current contact information. He said this bill
hel ps locate out-of-state wtnesses and victins of crine and
also aids in the investigation of sophisticated fraud cases, for
exanple, a doctor who is cheating Medicaid or an insurance
broker by not forwarding premum paynents to the insurance
conpany. The district attorney can |ocate and investigate
former enpl oyees through their U records.

CHAI R ANDERSQN, upon determ ning no one else wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony.

Number 1627

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report HB 490 out of conmttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 490 was reported from the
House Labor and Commerce Standi ng Commttee.

ADJ CQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:30 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 35- March 24, 2004



